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A BILL FOR

BAn Act relating to gambling, by imposing a moratorium on the
issuance or transfer of certain gambling licenses and on
increasing the number of games and machines, providing for the
transfer of collective bargaining agreements, limiting the
location of excursion gambling boats and pari-mutuel
racetracks, prohibiting the dispensing of cash or credit on
certain gambling premises, imposing a scheduled fine for
gambling by persons under twenty-one years of age, limiting
civil penalties related to violations of legal age for
gambling, providing for the disposition of charitable
contributions, and rescinding the nine-year period of
operation for certain licenses.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:
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..ﬁsggipﬁ 1. 8§ection 99D.9, subsection 1, Code 1999,
amended to read as follows:

is

1. If the commission is satisfied that its rules and

sections 99D.8 through 99D.25 applicable to licensees have

been or will be complied with, it may issue a license for a

period of not more than three years. The commission may

decide which types of racing it will permit. The commission

may permit dog racing, horse racing of various types, or both

dog and horse racing. The commission shall decide the

number,

location, and type of all racetracks licensed under this

chapter. The commission shall not authorize a licensee to

conduct pari-mutuel wagering at a licensed premises in

more

than one county. The license shall set forth the name

licensee, the type of license granted, the place where
race meeting is to be held, and the time and number of
during which racing may be conducted by the licensee.

of the
the
days
The

commission shall not approve the licenses for racetracks in

Dubuque county and Black Hawk county if the proposed racing

schedules of the two tracks conflict. The commission shall

not approve a license application if any part of the racetrack

is to be constructed on prime farmland outside the city limits

of an incorporated city. As used in this subsection,

"prime

farmland" means as defined by the United States department of

agriculture in 7 C.F.R. sec. 657.5(a). A license is not

transferable or assignable. The commission may revoke

any

license issued for good cause upon reasonable notice and

hearing. The commission shall conduct a neighborhood impact

study to determine the impact of granting a license on the

quality of life in neighborhoods adjacent to the proposed

racetrack facility. The applicant for the license shall

reimburse the commission for the costs incurred in making the

study. A copy of the study shall be retained on file with the

commission and shall be a public record. The study shall be

completed before the commission may issue a license for the

proposed facility.
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Sec. 2. Section 99D.11, subsection 7, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

7. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not
make or attempt to make a pari-mutuel wager. A person who
violates this subsection commits a scheduled violation under

section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 3. Section 99E.18, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A person under the age of twenty-one
years shall not purchase or attempt to purchase a ticket or

share. A person who violates this subsection commits a
scheduled violation under section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 4. Section 99F.4A, subsection 2, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

2. A license to operate gambling games shall be issued
only to a licensee holding a valid license to conduct pari-
mutuel dog or horse racing pursuant to chapter 99D on January
1, 1994. However, a license to operate gambling games issued

pursuant to this subsection may be transferred to another

person after a majority of the voters voting on the transfer

proposal approves it. Only the registered voters of the

county in which the racetrack enclosure is located are

eligible to vote on the proposal. The transfer proposal shall

be submitted by the board of supervisors at a general election

or at a special election called for that purpose. If the

proposal is approved, the transfer of a license is subiject to

application to, and approval by, the commission. However, the

commission shall not give its approval unless the new licensee

meets the requirements of sections 99D.8 through 99D.10, and

has a license to conduct pari-mutuel wagering in this state.

In addition, if there is in existence at the time of license

transfer a contract for purses and supplements for horse

racing, the contract shall remain in effect until its

termination, and thereafter, purses and supplements shall be

no lower than fifteen percent of the annual adjusted gross

o e
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receipts. A transferee shall not be required to honor any .
material changes made to such a contract within one vyear

before the transfer.

Sec. 5. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 8. The total number of licenses issued to
conduct gambling games at pari-mutuel racetracks pursuant to

subsection 2 shall not exceed three until July 1, 2004.

Sec. 6. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 9. A civil penalty imposed by the
commission on a licensee relating to a violation of legal age

for gambling at an excursion gambling boat or a pari-mutuel
racetrack shall not exceed one thousand dollars per incident
if the violator is removed from the excursion gambling boat or
racetrack enclosure by the licensee.

Sec. 7. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 10. If a license issued pursuant to this
chapter or chapter 99D is transferred, an existing collective

bargaining agreement or the impact of an employee
representation election shall transfer to the new licensee.

Sec. 8. NEW SECTION. 99F.5A MORATORIUM FOR ISSUANCE OF
LICENSES FOR EXCURSION GAMBLING BOATS AND ON THE NUMBER OF
GAMBLING GAMES OR SLOT MACHINES.

1. The total number of licenses issued to conduct gambling
games on excursion gambling boats pursuant to this chapter
shall not exceed ten until July 1, 2004.

2. The following actions may be taken until July 1, 2004,

with the approval of the commission:

a. A licensed excursion gambling boat may move to a new
location within the same county.

b. A licensed excursion gambling boat and its facilities
may be sold and a new license may be issued for operation in

the same county.
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c. If a license to conduct gambling games on an excursion
gambling boat is surrendered, not renewed, or revoked, a new
license may be issued for operation in the same county.

3. Until January 1, 2002, the commission shall not
authorize any of the following:

a. An increase in the number of gambling games or the

number of slot machines on an excursion gambling boat.
b. An increase in the number of slot machines at a pari-

O 0~ 6 W N

mutuel racetrack.
Sec. 9. NEW SECTION. 99F.5B CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS.
A gambling game license holder may distribute profits to a
governmental body and the distribution shall be considered a

[
o

H o
N

charitable contribution. The duty to make charitable

- e
o> W

contributions may be the subject of a contract between a

e
(8]

governmental body and a gambling game license holder. The
moneys received by a county as charitable contributions shall

S8

be distributed only after receiving advice from citizens of

[
Q

the county obtained at public hearings held in the county.
Sec. 10. Section 99F.7, subsection 1, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

N
(=2 Ve ]

1. If the commission is satisfied that this chapter and

NN
N

its rules adopted under this chapter applicable to licensees

M)
w

have been or will be complied with, the commission shall issue

N
S

a license for a period of not more than three years to an

[ V]
(34]

applicant to own a gambling game operation and to an applicant

N
(=)}

to operate an excursion gambling boat. The commission shall

N
~

decide which of the gambling games authorized under this

N
[o 0]

chapter it will permit. The commission shall decide the

N
\O

number, location, and type of excursion gambling boats

W
o

licensed under this chapter for operation on the rivers,

w
-

lakes, and reservoirs of this state. However, after July 1,

w
N

1999, the commission shall issue or renew a license for an

w
w

excursion gambling boat operation only if the excursion

gambling boat operates on the Mississippi or Missouri river or

w
=3

w
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in Clarke county. The license shall set forth the name of the

-4-
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licensee, the type of license granted, the place where the
excursion gambling boats will operate and dock, and the time
and number of days during the excursion season and the off
season when gambling may be conducted by the licensee. The
commission shall not allow a licensee to conduct gambling
games on an excursion gambling boat while docked during the
off season if the licensee does not operate gambling
excursions for a minimum number of days during the excursion
season. The commission may delay the commencement of the
excursion season at the request of a licensee.

Sec. 11. Section 99F.7, subsection 10, paragraph b, Code
1999, is amended to read as follows:

b. If licenses to conduct gambling games and to operate an
excursion gambling boat are in effect pursuant to a referendum
as set forth in this section and are subsequently disapproved
by a referendum of the county electorate, the licenses issued
by the commission after a referendum approving gambling games
on excursion gambling boats shall remain valid and are subject
to renewal for a total of nine years from the date of original
issue unless the commission revokes a license at an earlier
date as provided in this chapter. For the purpose of this

paragraph, a license issued on or after July 1, 1999, shall

not be considered an original issue and the nine-year period

of operation shall not apply.
Sec. 12. Section 99F.9, subsection 5, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

5. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not
make or attempt to make a wager on an excursion gambling boat

or in a racetrack enclosure and shall not be-atiewed-in enter

the area of the excursion gambling boat or_ racetrack enclosure

where gambling is being conducted. However, a person eighteen
years of age or older may be employed to work in-a-gambiing
area on an excursion gambling boat or in a racetrack

enclosure. A person who violates this subsection with respect

to making or attempting to make a wager commits a scheduled

-5-
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1 violation under section 805.8, subsection 13.
2 Sec. 13. Section 99F.9, Code 1999, is amended by adding
3 the following new subsection:
4 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. A licensee shall not permit the
5 operation of a satellite terminal as defined in section 527.2
6 to dispense cash or credit for gambling purposes on an
7 excursion gambling boat or within a racetrack enclosure except
8 in nongambling areas as designated by the commission. The
9 commission may assess a civil penalty for a violation of this
10 subsection.
11 Sec. 14. Section 805.8, Code 1999, is amended by adding
12 the following new subsection:
13 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. GAMBLING VIOLATIONS. For violations
14 of legal age for gambling or pari-mutuel wagering under

section 99D.11, subsection 7, section 99E.18, subsection 5, or
section 99F.9, subsection 5, the scheduled fine is one hundred
dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person under the age of
eighteen shall not result in the person being detained in a

=
2

-
< o

=
o ®

secure facility.
EXPLANATION
The bill imposes a moratorium on the issuing of licenses to

N NN
N = O

conduct gambling games on excursion gambling boats and at

N
w

pari-mutuel racetracks until July 1, 2004, and freezes the

N
=

number of excursion gambling boat licenses at 10 and the

N
(%,

number of gambling game licenses at pari-mutuel racetracks at

[ (V]
)]

three. During the moratorium, an excursion gambling boat may

N
~J

be sold and a new license may be issued in the same county.

[
[0 <]

The operation of an excursion gambling boat may be relocated

N
O

within a county with the state racing and gaming commission's

w
o

approval and the commission may reissue for the same county a

w
—

license that is surrendered, not renewed, or revoked. During

w
N

the moratorium until January 1, 2002, the commission shall not

w
w

authorize an increase in the number of gambling games or the
. 34 number of slot machines on an excursion gambling boat or the
35 number of slot machines at a pari-mutuel racetrack.

-6-
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The bill also authorizes the transfer of a gambling license
at a pari-mutuel horse or dog racetrack with approval of a
majority of the county voters voting on the transfer question.
The transfer is also subject to the approval of the state
racing and gaming commission. The bill provides for the
transfer of contract provisions relating to purses and
supplements for horse racing and the purses and supplements
are required to be no lower than 15 percent of the annual
adjusted gross receipts. A transferee is not required to
honor any material changes made to such a contract within one
year before the transfer.

The bill provides that the state racing and gaming
commission shall not authorize a pari-mutuel licensee to
conduct pari-mutuel wagering at a licensed premises in more
than one county.

The bill imposes a $100 scheduled fine on a person under 21
years of age who attempts to gamble or gambles on an excursion
gambling boat or at a racetrack enclosure, who attempts to
purchase or purchases a lottery ticket or share, or who
attempts to place or places a pari-mutuel wager.

The bill prohibits a gambling game licensee from allowing
the dispensing of cash or credit through satellite terminals
or other electronic means for gambling purposes. However,
satellite terminals to dispense cash or credit may be located
in nongaming areas designated by the commission.

The bill provides that if a gambling license is
transferred, an existing collective bargaining agreement or
the impact of an employee representation election shall
transfer to the new licensee.

The bill provides that a gambling licensee may distribute
profits to a governmental body and the distribution shall be
considered a charitable contribution.

The bill also provides that, after July 1, 1999, the
commission shall issue or renew a license for an excursion
gambling ‘boat only if the boat operates on the Mississippi or

~7-
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Missouri river, or in Clarke county.

The bill also provides that an excursion gambling boat
license issued on or after July 1, 1999, shall not be
considered an original issue of an excursion gambling boat
license and the minimum nine-year period of operation shall
not apply to that license.

LSB 2013SC 78
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A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to gambling, by imposing a moratorium on the

2 issuance or transfer of certain gambling licenses and on

3 increasing the number of games and machines, authorizing the

4 use of video slot machines, providing for the transfer of

5 collective bargaining agreements, limiting the location of

6 excursion gambling boats and pari-mutuel racetracks, é%%
7 prohibiting the dispensing of cash or credit on certain £
8 gambling premrises, imposing a scheduled fine for gambling by ifi;
9 persons under twenty-one years of age, limiting civil
10 penalties related to violations of legal age for gambling,
11 providing for the disposition of charitable contributions,
12 nullifying certain administrative rules relating to gambling,
13 rescinding the nine-year period of operation for certain
14 licenses, providing for properly related matters, and

15 providing effective dates.

16 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:
17
18

20

21

22

23
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Section 1. Section 99D.9, subsection 1, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

1. If the commission is satisfied that its rules and
sections 99D.8 through 99D.25 applicable to licensees have
been or will be complied with, it may issue a license for a
period of not more than three years. The commission may
decide which types of racing it will permit. The commission
may permit dog racing, horse racing of various types, or both
dog and horse racing. The commission shall decide the number,
location, and type of all racetracks licensed under this
chapter. The commission snall not authorize a licensee to

conduct pari-mutuel wagering at a licensed premises in more

than one county. The license shall set forth the name of the

licensee, the type of license granted, the place where the
race meeting is to be held, and the time and number of days
during which racing may be conducted by the licensee. The
commission shall not approve the licenses for racetracks in
Dubuque county and Black Hawk county if the proposed racing
schedules of the two tracks conflict. The commission shall
not approve a license application if any part of the racetrack
is to be constructed on prime farmland outside the city limits
of an incorporated city. As used in this subsection, "prime
farmland" means as defined by the United States department of
agriculture in 7 C.F.R. sec. 657.5(a). A license is not
transferable or assignable. The commission may revoke any
license issued for good cause upon reasonable notice and
hearing. The commission shall conduct a neighborhood impact
study to determine the impact of granting a license on the
quality of life in neighborhoods adjacent to the proposed
racetrack facility. The applicant for the license shall
reimburse the commission for the costs incurred in making the
study. A copy of the study shall be retained on file with the
commission and shall be a public record. The study shall be
completed before the commission may issue a license for the
proposed facility.




W 0 N O UV > W N

W W W W W w NN NN NN NN NN
O b W N O W 0 N O b W N - O W oo N O 0w N+~ O

S.F. uqs H.F.

Sec. 2. Section 99D.9, Code 1999, is amended by adding the
following new subsection:
NEW SUBSECTION. 8. A licensee shall not permit the

operation of a satellite terminal as defined in section 527.2

or any other type of terminal which provides access to
prearranged credit through a credit card or other means when
such credit is extended by a nonlicensee to dispense cash or
credit for gambling purposes on an excursion gambling boat or
within a racetrack enclosure except in nongambling areas as
approved by the commission. The commission may assess a civil
penalty for a violation of this subsection.

Sec. 3. Section 99D.11, subsection 7, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

7. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not

make or attempt to make a pari-mutuel wager. A person who

violates this subsection commits a scheduled violation under

section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 4. Section 99E.18, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A person under the age of twenty-one

years shall not purchase or attempt to purchase a ticket or
share. A person who violates this subsection commits a
scheduled violation under section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 5. Section 99F.1, subsection 9, Code 1999, is amended
to read as follows:

9. "Gambling game" means any game of chance authorized by
the commission. If slot machines are authorized, video slot

machines are included as gambling games. However, for

racetrack enclosures, "gambling game" does not include table

games of chance or video machines except video slot machines.

"Gambling game" does not include sports betting.

Sec. 6. Section 99F.4A, subsection 2, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

2. A license to operate gambling games shall be issued
only to a licensee holding a valid license to conduct pari-

-2-
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mutuel dog or horse racing pursuant to chapter 99D on January

1, 1994. However, a license to operate gambling games issued

pursuant to this subsection may be transferred to another

person after a majority of the voters voting on the transfer

proposal approves it. Only the registered voters of the

county in which the racetrack enclosure is located are

eligible to vote on the proposal. The transfer proposal shall

be submitted by the board of supervisors at a general election

or at a special election called for that purpose. If the

proposal is approved, the transfer of a license is subject to

application to, and approval by, the commission. However, the

commission shall not give its approval unless the new licensee

meets the requirements of sections 99D.8 through 99D.1¢, and

has a license to conduct pari-mutuel wagering in this state.

In addition, if there is in existence at the time of license

transfer a contract for purses and supplements for horse

racing, the contract shall remain in effect until its

termination, and thereafter, purses and supplements shall be

no lower than fifteen percent of the annual adjusted gross

receipts. A transferee shall not be required to honor any

material changes made to such a contract within one year

before the transfer.

Sec. 7. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 8. The total number of licenses issued to

conduct gambling games at pari-mutuel racetracks pursuant to
subsection 2 shall not exceed three until July 1, 2004.

Sec. 8. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 9. A civil penalty imposed by the
commission on a licensee relating to a violation of legal age

for gambling at an excursion gambling boat or a pari-mutuel
racetrack shall not exceed one thousand dollars per incident
if the violator is removed from the excursion gambling boat or

racetrack enclosure by the licensee.

_3_
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Sec. 9. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the follnwing new subsection:
NEW SUBSECTION. 10. If a license issued purguant to this

chapter or chapter 99D is transferred, an existing collective
bargaining agreement or the impact of an employee
representation election shall transfer to the new licensee.
Sec. 10. NEW SECTION. 99F.5A MORATORIUM FOR ISSUANCE OF
LICENSES FOR EXCURSION GAMBLING BOATS AND ON THE NUMBER OF
GAMBLING GAMES OR SLOT MACHINES.
1. The total number of licenses issued to conduct gambling

games on excursion gambling boats pursuant to this chapter
shall not exceed ten until July 1, 2004.

2. The following actions may be taken until July 1, 2004,
with the approval of the commission:

a. A licensed excursion gambling boat may move to a new
location within the same county.

b. A licensed excursion gambling boat and its facilities
may be sold and a new license may be issued for operation in
the same county.

c. If a license to conduct gambling games on an excursion
gambling boat is surrendered, not renewed, or revoked, a new
license may be issued for operation in the same county.

3. Until January 1, 2002, the commission shall not
authorize any of the following:

a. An increase in the number of gambling games or the
number of slot machines on an excursion gambling boat.

b. An increase in the number of slot machines at a pari-
mutuel racetrack.

Sec. 11. NEW SECTION. 99F.5B CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS.

A gambling game license holder may distribute profits to a
governmental body and the distribution shall be considered a

charitable contribution. The duty to make charitable
contributions may be the subject of a contract between a.
governmental body and a gambling game license holder. The
moneys received by a county as charitable contributions shall

-4-
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be distributed only after receiving advice from citizens of .
the county obtained at public hearings held in the county. '

Sec. 12. Section 99F.7, subsection 1, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

1. If the commission is satisfied that this chapter and
its rules adopted under this chapter applicable to licensees
have been or will be complied with, the commission shall issue
a license for a period of not more than three years to an
applicant to own a gambling game operation and to an applicant
to operate an excursion gambling boat. The commission shall
decide which of the gambling games authorized under this
chapter it will permit. The commission shall decide the
number, location, and type of excursion gambling boats
licensed under this chapter for operation on the rivers,
lakes, and reservoirs of this state. However, after the

effective date of this Act, the commission shall issue or

renew a license for an excursion gambling boat operation only

if the excursion gambling boat operates on the Mississippi or

Missouri river or in Clarke county. The license shall set

forth the name of the licensee, the type of license granted,
the place where the excursion gambling boats will operate and
dock, and the time and number of days during the excursion
season and the off season when gambling may be conducted by
the licensee. The commission shall not allow a licensee to
conduct gambling games on an excursion gambling boat while
docked during the off season if the licensee does not operate
gambling excursions for a minimum number of days during the
excursion season. The commission may delay the commencement
of the excursion season at the request of a licensee.

Sec. 13. Section 99F.7, subsection 10, paragraph b, Code
1999, is amended to read as follows:

b. If licenses to conduct gambling games and to operate an
excursion gambling boat are in effect pursuant to a referendum
as set forth in this section and are subsequently disapproved

by a referendum of the county electorate, the licenses issued

_5_
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by the commission after a referendum approving gambling games

on excursion gambling boats shall remain valid and are subject
to renewal for a total of nine years from the date of original
issue unless the commission revokes a license at an earlier

date as provided in this chapter. For the purpose of this

paragraph, a license applied for on or after October 1, 1999,

shall not be considered an original issue and the nine-year

period of operation shall not apply.
Sec. 14. Section 99F.9, subsection 5, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

5. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not
make or attempt to make a wager on an excursion gambling boat

or in a racetrack enclosure and shall not be-altewed-in enter

the area of the excursion gambling boat or racetrack enclosure

where gambling is being conducted. However, a person eighteen
years of age or older may be employed to work in-a-gambiting
area Oon an excursion gambling boat or in a racetrack

enclosure. A person who violates this subsection with respect

to making or attempting to make a wager commits a scheduled

violation under section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 15. Section 99F.9, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 7. A licensee shall not permit the
operation of a satellite terminal as defined in section 527,é

or any other type of terminal which provides access to #
prearranged credit through a credit card or other means when
such credit is extended by a nonlicensee to dispense cash or
credit for gambling purposes on an excursion gambling boat or
within a racetrack enclosure except in nongambling areas as
approved by the commission., The commission may assess a civil
penalty for a violation of this subsection.

Sec. 16. Section 805.8, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 13. GAMBLING VIOLATIONS. , For violations
of legal age for gambling or pari-mutuel wagering under

-6-
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section 99D.11, subsection 7, section 99E.18, subsection 5, or .
section 99F.9, subsection 5, the scheduled fine is one hundred

dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person under the age of
eighteen shall not result in the person being detained in a
secure facility.

Sec. 17. NULLIFICATION OF RULES.

1. 491 Iowa administrative code, rule 1.6, subrule 4, is
nullified.

2. 491 Iowa administrative code, rule 5.1, subrule 5, is
nullified.

3. 491 Iowa administrative code, rule 20.22, is nullified.

Sec. 18. EFFECTIVE DATES.

1. This Act, except section 17 of this Act, takes effect
October 1, 1999.

2. Section 17 of this Act, being deemed of immediate
importance, takes effect upon enactment.

EXPLANATION

The bill imposes a moratorium on the issuing of licenses to ‘

conduct gambling games on excursion gambling boats and at

pari-mutuel racetracks until July 1, 2004, and freezes the
number of excursion gambling boat licenses at 10 and the
number of gambling game licenses at pari-mutuel racetracks at
three. During the moratorium, an excursion gambling boat may
be sold and a new license may be issued in the same county.
The operation of an excursion gambling boat may be relocated
within a county with the state racing and gaming commission's
approval and the commission may reissue for the same county a
license that is surrendered, not renewed, or revoked. During
the moratorium until January 1, 2002, the commission shall not
authorize an increase in the number of gambling games or the
number of slot machines on an excursion gambling boat or the
number of slot machines at a pari-mutuel racetrack. Video
slot machines are defined to be gambling games.

The bill also authorizes the transfer of a gambling license
at a pari-mutuel horse or dog racetrack with approval of a .

_7_
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majority of the county voters voting on the transfer question.
The transfer is also subject to the approval of the state
racing and gaming commission. The bill provides for the
transfer of contract provisions relating to purses and
supplements for horse racing and the purses and supplements
are required to be no lower than 15 percent of the annual
adjusted gross receipts. A transferee is not required to
honor any material changes made to such a contract within one
year before the transfer.

The bill provides that the state racing and gaming
commission shall not authorize a pari-mutuel licensee to
conduct pari-mutuel wagering at a licensed premises in more
than one county.

The bill imposes a $100 scheduled fine on a person under 21
years of age who attempts to gamble or gambles on an excursion
gambling boat or at a racetrack enclosure, who attempts to
purchase or purchases a lottery ticket or share, or who
attempts to place or places a pari-mutuel wager.

The bill prohibits a gambling game licensee from allowing
the dispensing of cash or credit through satellite terminals
or other electronic means for gambling purposes. However,
satellite terminals to dispense cash or credit may be located
in nongaming areas designated by the commission.

The bill provides that if a gambling license is
transferred, an existing collective bargaining agreement or
the impact of an employee representation election shall
transfer to the new licensee.

The bill provides that a gambling licensee may distribute
profits to a governmental body and the distribution shall be
considered a charitable contribution.

The bill also provides that, after October 1, 1999, the
commission shall issue or renew a license for an excursion
gambling boat only if the boat operates on the Mississippi or
Missouri river, or in Clarke county.

The bill also provides that an excursion gambling boat

-8-
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license issued on or after October 1, 1999, shall not be ‘
considered an original issue of an excursion gambling boat

license and the minimum nine-year period of operation shall

not apply to that license.

LSB 2013SV 78 '
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SENATE FILE 445
FISCAL NOTE

The estimate for Senate File 445, as passed by the Senate, is hereby submitted
as a fiscal note pursuant to Joint Rule 17 and as a correctional impact
statement pursuant to Section 2.56, Code of Iowa. Data used in developing this
fiscal note = and correctional impact statement are available from the
Legislative Fiscal Bureau to members of the Legislature upon request.

Senate File 445, as passed by the Senate, imposes a moratorium on the issuance
or transfer of certain gambling licenses and on increasing the number of games
and machines, authorizing the wuse of video slot machines, providing for the
transfer of collective bargaining agreements, limiting the location of
excursion gambling boats and pari-mutuel racetracks, prohibiting the dispensing
of cash or credit on certain gambling premises, imposing a scheduled fine for
gambling by persons under twenty-one years of age, limiting civil penalties
related to violations of legal age for gambling, providing for the disposition
of charitable contributions, nullifying certain administrative rules relating
to gambling, rescinding the nine-year period of operation for certain licenses,
freezing the racetrack casino games wagering tax at 26.0%, providing for
properly related matters, and providing effective dates.

ASSUMPTIONS

1. The number of future expansion plans, types of expansion proposals, and
the locations are unknown.

2., The average daily retalned winnings per slot machine at the Prairie
Meadows Race Track and Casino (Altoona) was $308 in FY 1998. The Casino
has requested an 1increase of 336 new slot machines. If the new slot
machines average the FY 1998 retained winnings amount ($308 per machine),
the total 1increase 1n revenue would be approximately $37.8 million
annually.

3. The average daily retained winnings per slot machine at Ameristar Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $160 in FY 1998. Ameristar is requesting an increase
‘'of 360 new slot machines., If the new slot machines average the FY 1998
retained winnings amount ($160 per machine), the total increase in revenue
would be approximately $21.0 million annually.

4, The average daily retained winnings per slot machine at Harvey's Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $196 in FY 1998. Harvey's is requesting an increase
of 516 new slot machines. If the new slot machines average the FY 1998
retained winnings amount ($196 per machine), the total increase in revenue
would be approximately $36.9 million annually.

5. The average daily retained winnings per gaming table at Ameristar Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $1,319 in FY 1998, Ameristar is requesting an
increase of 14 gaming tables. If the new gaming tables average the FY
1998 retained winnings amount ($1,319 per table), the total increase in
revenue would be approximately $6.7 million annually.

© 6. The average daily retained winnings per gaming table at Harvey's Casino

(Council Bluffs) was $1,225 in FY 1998. Harvey's 1is requesting an
increase of 18 gaming tables. If the new gaming tables average the FY
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1998 retained winnings amount ($1,225 per table), the total increase in revenue
would be approximately $8.0 million annually.

7. Harvey's request for expansion of slot machines indicated that retained
winnings per slot machine would decrease by $48 the first year after
expansion compared to the base year and by $33 the second year after
expansion compared to the base year. Information included in the fiscal
impact section uses the average retained winnings based on FY 1998 data.

8. Harvey's request for expansion of gaming tables indicated that retained
winnings per gaming table would decrease by $284 the first year after
expansion compared to the base year and by $299 the second year after
expansion compared to the base year. Information included in the fiscal
impact section uses the average retained winnings based on FY 1998 data.

9. The Racing and Gaming Commission estimates adjusted gross revenues for FY
2000 as follows: Prairie Meadows $129.0 million, Bluffs Run $112.0
million, and Dubuque Grayhound Park §30.0 million. Adjusted gross
receipts are assumed to remain constant at the Racing and Gaming
Commission estimates.

10. The rate on any amount of adjusted gross receipts over $3.0 million at
each racetrack enclosure from gambling games was 26.0% as of January 1,
1999, and was set to increase by 2.0% each succeeding calendar year until
the rate would have been 36.0% starting January 1, 2004. The first full
fiscal year of the 36.0Z rate would have been FY 2005.

11. Annual gambling revenues to the General Fund in excess of $60.0 million go .
to the Rebuild Iowa Infrastructure Fund (RIIF).

12. Ameristar and Harvey's pay a marginal wagering tax of 20.0Z.

13. It 1is unknown how many people will violate the legal age for gambling in
any given year. However, during FY 1998, there were seven violations 1in
which a fine was 1imposed on a facility and the average fine was
approximately $7,000.

FISCAL IMPACT

Wagering Tax Freeze (26.0%):

The fiscal impact of Senate File 445, as passed by the Senate, to freeze the
wagering tax at 26.0 % is a decrease in revenue to the General Fund of $2.7
million in FY 2000 and $26.2 million in FY 2005.

Expansion Moratorium:

The fiscal 1impact of Senate File 445, as passed by the Senate, to place a
moratorium on gambling expansion cannot be determined due to insufficient
information. Because the number of proposals that might be submitted in the
future, the types of proposals, the location of those proposals, and which
proposals would be approved are unknown, no estimate can be provided. However,
based on the FY 1998 historical information included in the Assumptions
Section, the following information is provided:

Prairie Meadows ‘

Revenue on 336 new slot machines at $308 per day equals $37.8 million. The FY
2000 wagering tax would amount to $10.6 million if the marginal rate had been
allowed to change to 28.0%Z January 1, 2000.
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Wagering Tax of $10.6 million distribution?

0.5% ($53,000) to the city (Altoona).

0.5% ($53,000) to the county (Polk).

0.3% ($32,000) to the Cambling Assistance Fund.
The remaining Wagering Tax goes to the State General Fund ($10.4 million).

Ameristar and Harvey's Casinos

Ameristar slots revenue on 360 new slot machines at $160 per day equals $21.0
million.

Ameristar gaming tables revenue on 14 new gaming tables at $1,319 per day
equals $6.7 million.

Harvey's slots revenue on 516 new slot machines at $196 per day equals $36.9
million,

Harvey's gaming tables revenue on 18 new gaming tables at $1,225 per day equals
$8.0 million.

. Wagering Tax of $14.5 million distribution:

0.5% ($73,000) to the city (Council Bluffs).

0.5% ($73,000) to the county (Pottawattamie).

0.3% (543,000) to the Gambling Assistance Fund.

The remaining Wagering Tax goes to the State General Fund ($14.3 million).

Senate File 445 places a maximum fine of $1,000 on a facility that removes an
under age person from their facility. Since it is unknown how many people will
violate the legal age for gambling in any given year, the reduction to State
revenue cannot be determined.

Senate File 445 establishes a scheduled fine of $100 for any person who
violates the legal age for gambling. Since it is unknown how many people will
violate the 1legal age for gambling in any given year, the effect on State
revenue cannot be determined.

General Fund Impact Summary

Wagering Expansion

Tax Freeze Moratorium Total
Prairie Meadows $ -1.3 M $ ~10.4 M $ -11.7 M
Biuffs Run -1.1 0.0 -1.1
Dubuque -.3 0.0 -.3
Ameristar & Harvey's 0.0 -14.3 -14.3

rease to General Fund $ -2.7 M $ -24.7T M $ -27.4 M
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SOURCES

Iowa Racing and Gaming Commission
Prairie Meadows Racetrack & Casino
Harveys Casino Hotel - Council Bluffs

Ameristar Casino - Council Bluffs
(LSB 2013sv.2, RNR)

FILED APRIL 21, 1999 BY DENNIS PROUTY, FISCAL DIRECTOR
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SENATE FILE 445
FISCAL NOTE

The estimate for Senate File 445 1s hereby submitted as a fiscal note pursuant
to Joint Rule 17 and as a correctional impact statement pursuant to Section
2.56, Code of Iowa. Data used in developing this fiscal note and correctional
impact statemeni are available from the Legislative Fiscal Bureau tc members of
the Legislature upon request.

Senate File 445 imposes & moratorium on the issuance or transfer of certain
gambling licenses and on 1increasing the number of games and machines,
authorizing the wuse of video slot machines, providing for the transfer of
collective bargaining agreemenis, limiting the location of excursion gambling
boats and pari-mutuel racetracks, nrohibiting the dispensing of cash or credit
on certain gambling premises, imposing a scheduled fine for gambling by perscns
under tweniy-one years of age, limiting civil penalties related to violations
of legal age for gambling, providing for the disposition of charitable
contributions, nullifying certain administrative rules relating to gambling,
rescinding the nine-year period of operation for certain licenses, providing
for properly related matters, and providing effective dates.

ASSUMPTIONS

1. The number of future expansion plans, types of expansion proposals, and
the locations are unknown.

2, The average daily retained winnings per slot machine at the Prairie
Meadows Race Track and Casino (Altoona) was $308 in FY 1998. The Casino
has requested an increase of 336 new slot machines. If the new slot
machines average the FY 1998 retained winnings amount ($308 per machine),
the total 1increase in revenue would be approximately §$37.8 million
annually.

3. - The average daily retained winnings per slot machine at Ameristar Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $160 in FY 1998. Ameristar is requesting an increase
of 360 new slot machines. If the new slot machines average the FY 1998
retained winnings amount ($160 per machine), the total increase in revenue
would be approximately $21.0 million annually.

4, The average daily retained winnings per slot machine at Harvey's Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $196 in FY 1998. Harvey's is requesting an increase
of 516 new slot machines. If the new slot machines average the FY 1998
retained winnings amount ($196 per machine), the total increase in revenue
would be approximately $36.9 million annually.

5. The average daily retzined winnings per gaming table at Ameristar Casino

~ (Council Bluffs) was $1,319 in FY 1998. Ameristar is requesting an

increase of 14 gaming tables. If the new gaming tables average the FY

1998 retained winnings amount ($1,319 per table), the total increase in
revenue would be approximately $6.7 million annually.
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6. The average daily retained winnings per gaming table at Harvey's Casino
(Council Bluffs) was $1,225 in FY 1998. Harvey's is requesting an
increase of 18 gaming tables. If the new gaming tables average the FY
1998 retained winnings amount ($1,225 per table), the total increase in
revenue would be approximately $8.0 million annually.

7. Harvey's request for expansion of slot machines indicated that retained
winnings per slot machine would decrease by $48 the first year after
expansion compared to the base year and by $33 the second year after
expansion compared to the base year. Information included in the fiscal
impact section uses the average retained winnings based on FY 1998 data.

8. Harvey's request for expansion of gaming tables indicated that retained
winnings per gaming table would decrease by $284 the first year after
expansion compared to the base year and by $299 the second year after
expansion compared to the base year. Information included in the fiscal
impact section wuses the average retained winnings based on FY 1998 data.

9. Prairie Meadows pays & marginal wagering tax of 28.0% for FY 2000 and
© 30.0% for FY 2001.

10. Annual gambling revenues to the General Fund in excess of $60.0 million go
to the Rebuild Iowa Infrastructure Fund (RIIF).

11. Ameristar and Harvey's pay a marginal wagering tax of 20.0%.

12. It 1is unknown how many people will violate the legal age for gambling in
any given year. However, during FY 1998, there were seven violations in
which a fine was 1imposed on a facility and the average fine was
approximately $7,000.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fiscal impact of Senate File 445 cannot be determined due to insufficient

information. Because the number of proposals that might be submitted in the

future, the types of proposals, and the location of those proposals are

unknown, no estimate can be provided. However, based on the FY 1998 historical

information included in the Assumptions Section, the following information is
. provided:

Prairie Meadows

Revenue on 336 new slot machines at $308 per day equals $37.8 million.
Wagering Tax of $10.6 million distribution:

0.5%2 ($53,000) to the city (Altoona).

0.5% ($53,000) to the county (Polk).

0.3% ($32,000) to the Gambling Assistance Fund.

The remaining Wagering Tax goes to the State General Fund ($10.4 million).

Ameristar and Harvey's Casinos
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Ameristar slots revenue on 360 new slot machines at $160 per day equals $21.0
million.

Ameristar gaming tables revenue on 14 new gaming tables at $1,319 per day
equals $6.7 million.

Harvey's slots revenue on 516 new slot machines at $196 per day equals $36.9
million,

Harvey's gaming tables revenue on 18 new gaming tables at $1,225 per day equals
$8.0 million.

Wagering Tax of $14.5 million distribution:

0.5% ($73,000) to the city (Council Bluffs).

0.5% ($73,000) to the county (Pottawattamie).

0.3% ($43,000) to the Gambling Assistance Fund.

The remaining Wagering Tax goes to the State General Fund ($14.3 million).

Senate File 445 places a maximum fine of $1,000 on a facility that removes an

under age person from their facility. Since it is unknown how many people will

violate the 1legal! age for gambling in any given year, the reduction to State
‘ revenue cannot be determined.

Senate File 445 establishes a scheduled fine of $100 for any person who
violates the legal age for gambling. Since it 1s unknown how many people will
violate the 1legal age for gambling in any given year, the effect on State
revenue cannot be determined.

SOURCES

Iowa Racing and Gaming Commission
Prairie Meadows Racetrack & Casino
Harveys Casino Hotel - Council Bluffs

Ameristar Casino - Council Bluffs
(LSB 2013SV, RNR)

FILED MARCH 23, 1999 BY DENNIS PROUTY, FISCAL DIRECTOR




SENATE FILE 445

$-3108
1 Amend Senate File 445 as fol.ows:
2 1. Page 6, line 6, by striking the word and .
3 figures "October 1, 1999" and inserting the following:
. 4 “January 1, 2000".
By LYLE E. ZIEMAN

S-3108 FILED MARCH 22, 1959

Al rper— FhY J8G (770
SENATE FILE 445

$-3110

1 Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

2 1. Page 6, by striking lines 6 through 8 and

3 inserting the following: “paragraph, the.nine—year
4 period of operation shall only apply to licensees
5
6

whose original application was filed on or before
October 1, 1999."

By SHELDON RITTMER

$-3110 FILED MARCH 22, 1999

ézd%7a§;c,
3t /57 CR720) SENATE FILE 445

$-3101 :
1 Amend Senate File 445 as follows:
2 1. Page 3, line 19, by striking the word
3 "fifteen" and inserting the folicwing: "twenty".
By JACK RIFE

S~3101 FILED MARCH 18, 1999
"II',¢zwt4aLu4vﬁ*—’ » RN
324/ %
2 772)
SENATE FILE
S-3154 45
; ?mend Senate File 445 ag follows:
- Page 4, by inserting af i
3 following ¢+ by g ter line 6 the
4 "Sec. Section 99F.4A, Cod i
C . . e 1999, is
5 by adding the following new sébsection: ' amended
6 NEW $UBSECTION.. 1l. The authority to impose any
7 moratorium or prohibition under chapter 99D or 99F on
g éggbigsuance‘of any new licenses or additional :
ing e i i ;
. assemblg."qUIpment shall remain vested in the general :

By MICHAEL E. GRONSTAL

S-3154 FILED MARCH 25, 1999
WITHDRAWN  (¢. Qo)




SENATE FILE 445

S-3114
1 Amend the amendment, S-3110, to Senate File 445 as
2 follows:
3 1. Page 1, by striking line 6 and inserting the

4 following: "“January 1, 2000."
By LYLE E. ZIEMAN

S-3114 FILED MAlyZH 23, 1999
Z LY /77

(por) SENATE FILE 445
S$-3115

Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

1. Page 6, by striking lines 15 and 16 and
inserting the following: "where gambling is being
conducted except for employment purposes. However, a
person under eighteen years of age or-oider may be
employed to work in a-gambiing nongambling areas
only".

2. Page 6, by inserting after line 20 the
following: .

10 "Sec. ___. Section 99F.9, subsection 6, Code 1999,
11 is amended to read as follows:
12 6. A licensee shall not accept a credit card as
13 defined in section 537.1301, subsection 16, to
14 purchase coins, tokens, or other forms of credit to be
15 wagered on gambling games. This section shall not be
16 construed to prohibit a person access to the person's
17 prearranged credit through a credit card or other
18 means if the credit is extended by a nonlicensee."

By MARY A. LUNDBY

WOV N

S-3115 FILED MARCH 23, 1999

i}?&// 7

6?774)

SENATE FILE 445
S-3196
1 amend Senate file 445 as follows: . . .
2 1. Page 4, line 23, by striking the figure "2002

3 and inserting the following: "2005".
By ANDY McKEAN

S-3196 FILED MARCH 30, 1999

st 4/19\aq (P,n%l)SENATE FILE 445

S-3197
1 Aamend Senate File 445 as follows:
2 1. By striking page 2, line 32, through page 3,
3 line 22.

4 2. By renumbering as necessary.
By JOHN REDWINE

WD #4l17]99 E

S-3197 FILED MARCH 30, 1999
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SENATE FILE 445

-3138

Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

1. Page 6, by inserting after line 31 the
following:

"Sec. . Section 99F.11, unnumbered paragraph 1,
Code 1999, is amended to read as follows: -

A tax is imposed on the adjusted gross receipts
received annually from gambling games authorized under
this chapter at the rate of five percent on the first
one million dollars of adjusted gross receipts, at the

rate of ten percent on the next two million dollars of
adjusted gross receipts, and at the rate of twenty
percent on any amount of adjusted gross receipts over
three million dollars. However, beginning January 1,
3997 1999, the rate on any amount of adjusted gross
receipts over three million dollars from gambling
games at racetrack enclosures is twenty-two twenty-six

Page

percent and-shati-increase-by-two-percent-each
succeeding-catendar-year-untit-the-rate-its-thirty-stx
percent. The taxes imposed by this section shall be
paid by the licensee to the treasurer of state within
ten days after the close of the day when the wagers
were made and shall be distributed as follows:"

2. Title page, line 14, by inserting after the
word "licenses," the following: "providing a tax rate
for gambling receipts at racetrack enclosures,".

By MATT McCOY

3138 FILED MARCH 24, 1999

ADOPTED

S—

1
2
3
4

S_.

(P 773)

3139

Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

1. Page 5, line 2, by striking the words "“public
hearings" and inserting the following: "a public
hearing".

SENATE FILE 445

By MATT McCOY

3139 FILED MARCH 24, 1999

ADOPTED (p 7

S-

1
2
3
4
5

SENATE FILE 445
3140
Amend Senate File 445 as follows:
1. Page 3, line 20, by inserting after the word
"receipts." the following: "At least forty percent of

the horse stalls at a horse racetrack shall be used
for Iowa-bred horses only."
By DERRYL McLAREN

S-3140 FILED MARCH 24, 1999
WITHDRAWN

(777)

19
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SENATE FILE 445

S-3136

1 Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

2 1. Page 2, by striking lines 3 through 11 and

3 inserting the following:

4 "NEW SUBSECTION. 8. A licensee shall not loan to
5 any person money or any other thing of value or permit
6 a financial institution, vendor, or other person to

7 loan money on the licensed premises on the basis of a
8 credit card or similar instrument in person or through
9 an electronic or mechanical device for the purpose of

permitting that person to wager on any race. The use’
of a check or debit card with overdraft protection or
a credit card cash advance through a satellite
terminal as defined in section 527.2 or a withdrawal
from an account through a satellite terminal as
defined in section 527.2 is not prohibited by this
subsection.”

2. Page 6, by striking lines 23 through 31 and
inserting the following:

"NEW SUBSECTION. 7. A licensee shall not loan to
any person money or any other thing of value or permit
a financial institution, vendor, or other person to
loan money on the licensed premises on the basis of a
credit card or similar instrument in person or through
an electronic or mechanical device for the purpose of
permitting that person to wager on any game of chance.
The use of a check or debit card with overdraft
protection or a credit card cash advance through a
satellite terminal as defined in section 527.2 or a
withdrawal from an account through a satellite
terminal as defined in section 527.2 is not prohibited
by this subsection."

By ANDY McKEAN

¢ 785

S-3136 FILED MARCH 24, 1999 c
ADOPTED, MOTION TO RECONSIDER FILED W M W

3,29/@9




SENATE CLIP SHEET ° APRIL 9, 1999 Page 2

SENATE FILE 445

' S-3331
b Amend Senate File 445 as follows:

1
2 1. Page 1, by inserting before line 1 the
3 following:
4 "Section 1. Section 99D.8, unnumbered paragraph 1,
5 Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:
6 A qualifying organization, as defined in section
7 513(d)(2)(C) of the Internai Revenue Code, as defined
8 in section 422.3, exempt from federal income taxation
9 under sections 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), or 501(c)(5) of
10 the Internal Revenue Code or a nonprofit corporation
11 organized under the laws of this state, whether or not
12 it is exempt from federal income taxation, which is
13 organized to promote those purposes enumerated in
14 section 99B.7, subsection 3, paragraph "b", or which
15 regqularly conducts an agricultural and educational
16 fair or exposition for the promotion of the hepse, , on pm.
17 dog, or other livestock breeding industries of the “: - I A
18 state, or an agency, instrumentality, or polit¥fcal: i svei § “6
19 subdivision of the state, may apply to the commission
20 for a license to conduct horse or dog racing. The
21 application shall be filed with the administrator of
22 the commission at least sixty days before the first
23 day of the horse race or dog race meeting which the
24 organization proposes to conduct, shall specify the
25 day or days when and the exact location where it
‘26 proposes to conduct racing, and shall be in a form and
27 contain information as the commission prescribes. A
28 county shall not own or lease a pari-mutuel horse
29 racetrack and shall not own or lease any facility in
30 which slot machines are licensed to operate."

31 2. Page 4, by inserting after line 6 the

32 following:

33 “Sec. . NEW SECTION. 99F.4C DIVESTITURE.

34 1. If, on the effective date of this Act, a county

35 owns or has a leasehold interest in any real estate or
36 other property which is used in the operation of slot
37 machines licensed pursuant to this chapter or of a

38 pari-mutuel horse racetrack licensed pursuant to

39 chapter 99D, the county shall divest itself not later
40 than July 1, 2000, of any interest in the real estate
41 or other property which is used in the operation of

42 slot machines or pari-mutuel horse racing.

43 2. A county which owns or has a leasehold interest
44 in real property as provided in subsection 1 shall

45 divest itself of the real property by sale at a fair
46 market price to a corporation organized pursuant to

47 chapter 490 with the following restrictions and

48 requirements:

49 a. All shares of the corporation shall be sold to
50 residents of this state.

.5—3331 ~1-
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1 p. All officers and directors of the corporation
snall be residents of this state.

c. The transfer of all shares shall be subject to
the approval of the corporation and the transfer shall
be to the corporation or to other residents of this
state."

3. Title page, line 3, by inserting after the
word "machines,” the following: "“providing for the
divestiture of gambling facilities held by counties,".

By JACK RIFE
DERRYL McLAREN

OO L WN

S-3331 FILED APRIL 8, 1999

WITHDRAWN

A{//4/€77
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SENATE FILE 445

Amend the amendment, S-2331, to Senate File 445, as
follows:

1. Page 2, by inserting after line 6 the
following:

" . Page 7, by inserting before line 12 the
following:

"Sec. 101. IOWA LOTTERY DISCONTINUED --
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY —-- EMPLOYEES TRANSFERRED OR
LAID OFF.

1. The Iowa lottery board shall discontinue all
lottery games established pursuant to chapter 99E
effective Juiy 1, 2000. The lottery board shall

rovide for the termination of all contracts extending
beyond July 1, 2000, and provide for the disposition
of all property leased or owned by the lottery
division.

2. Any employee of the lottery division employed
pursuant to chapter 19A and whose duty assignment is
terminated by this Act, may be transferred to other
duties within the department of revenue and finance,
reassigned to other duties in another state department
or agency, or terminated. An employee shall not lose
benefits accrued including, but not limited to,
salary, retirement, vacation, or sick leave because of
a transfer or reassignment.

3. The members of the lottery board, the
commissioner, and any additional employees deemed
necessary by the board may continue employment on or
after July 1, 2000, to provide for the orderly
discontinuation of the lottery games. However, not
later than September 30, 2000, the terms of office of
the lottery board members and the employment of the
commissioner and any other employees remaining on or
after July 1, 2000, shall terminate. Any matters
regarding the termination of the lottery games
established under chapter 99E which remain on October
1, 2000, are the responsibility of the director of
revenue and finance. The director of revenue and
finance shall complete the discontinuation of the
lottery games as expeditiously as possible.

Sec. 102. Section 7E.5, subsection 1, paragraph 4,
Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

d. The department of revenue and finance, created
in section 421.2, which has primary responsibility for
revenue collection and revenue law compliance, and
financial management and assistancey-and-the-Iowa
lottery.

Sec. 103. Section 7E.6, subsection 3, Code 1999,
is amended by striking the subsection.

Sec. 104. Section 8.22A, subsection 5, paragraph

' 50
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1 a, Code 1999, is amended by striking the paragraph.

2 Sec. 105. Section 68B.35, subsection 2, paragraph
3 e, Code 1999, is amended to read as followa:

4 e. Members of the banking board, the ethics and

5 campaign disclosure board, the credit unioan review

6 board, the economic development board, the employment
7 appeal board, the environmental protection commission,
8 the health facilities council, the Iowa business

9 investment corporation board of directors, the Iowa

10 finance authority, the Iowa seed capital corporation,
11 the Iowa public employees' retirement systcem

12 investment board, the-totctery-beoard; the natural

13 resource commission, the board of parole, the
14 petroleum underground storage tank fund board, the

15 public employment relations board, the state racing

16 and gaming commission, the state board of regents, the
17 tax review board, the transportation commission, the
18 office of consumer advocate, the utilities board, the
19 Iowa telecommunications and technology commission, and
20 any full-time members of other boards and commissions
21 as defined under section 7E.4 who receive an annual

22 salary for their service on the board or commission.
23 Sec. 106. Section 99A.10, Code 1999, is amended to
24 read as follows:

25 39A.10 MANUFACTURE AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAMBLING

26 DEVICES PERMITTED.
27 A person may manufacture or act as a distributor

28 for gambling devices for sale out of the state in
29 another jurisdiction where possession of the device is
30 legal or for sale in the state or use in the state if
31 the use is permitted pursuant to either chapter 99B or
32 chapter-99E.

33 Sec. 107. Section 99B.1, subsection 17, Code 1999,
34 is amended by striking the subsection.

35 Sec. 108. Section 99B.6, subsection 5, Code 1999,
36 is amended by striking the subsection.
37 Sec. 109. Section 99B.7, subsection 1, paragraph

38 1, subparagraph (1), Code 1999, is amended to read as
39 follows:

40 (1) No other gambling is engaged in at the same

1 locationy-except-that-tottery-tickets-or-shares-issued
42 by-the-itottery-division-of-the-department-of-revenue
43 and-finance-may-be-soid-pursuant-to-chapter-53E.

44 Sec. 110. Section 99B.15, Code 1999, is amended to
45 read as follows:
46 99B.15 APPLICABILITY OF CHAPTER -- PENALTY.
47 It is the intent and purpose of this chapter to
48 authorize gambling in this state only to the extent
49 specifically permitted by a section of this chapter or
50 chapter 99D7-99E7 or 99F. Except as otherwise
S-3363 -2-
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person to comply with the limitations imposed by this
chapter constitutes unlawful gambling, a serious
misdemeanor.

Sec. 111. Section 99F.2, Code 1999, is amended to
read as follows:

99F.2 SCOPE OF PROVISIONS.

This chapter does not apply to the pari-mutuel
system of wagering used or intended to be used in
connection with the horse-race or dog-race meetings as
authorized under chapter 99D7-lottery-er-iotto-games
authertzed-under—chapter-99E7 or bingo or games of
skill or chance authorized under chapter 99B.

Sec. 112. Section 99F.11, subsection 3, Code 1999,
is amended to read as follows:

3. Three-tenths of one percent of the adjusted
gross receipts shall be deposited in the gambling
treatment fund specified-in-seection-99E-16;-subsection
t;-paragraph-tal,

Sec. 113. Section 123.49, subsection 2, paragraph
a, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

a. Knowingly permit any gambling, except in
accordance with chapter 99B, 99D, S55%E; or 99F, or
knowingly permit solicitation for immoral purposes, or
immoral or disorderly conduct on the premises covered
by the license or permit.

Sec. 114. Section 321.19, subsection 1, unnumbered
paragraph 2, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

The department shall furnish, on application, free
of charge, distinguishing plates for vehicles thus
exempted, which plates except plates on Icowa state
patrol vehicles shall bear the word "official" and the
department shall keep a separate record. Registration
plates issued for Iowa state patrol vehicles, except
unmarked patrol vehicles, shall bear two red stars on
a yellow background, one before and one following the
registration number on the plate, which registration
number shall be the officer's badge number.
Registration plates issued for county sheriff's patrol
vehicles shall display one seven-pointed gold star
followed by the letter "S" and the call number of the
vehicle. However, the director of general services or
the director of transportation may order the issuance
of regular registration plates for any exempted
vehicle used by peace officers in the enforcement of
the law, persons enforcing chapter 124 and other laws
relating to controlled substances, and persons in the
department of justice, the alcoholic beverages
division of the department of commerce, the department
of inspections and appeals, and the department of

'9—3363 -3-
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1 revenue and finance, who are regularly assigned to

2 conduct investigations which cannot reasonably be

3 conducted with a vehicle displaying "official" state

4 registration platesy-persons-in-the-itottery-division

5 of-the-department-of-revenue-and-£finance-whose

6 reguiariy-assigned-duties-reiating-to-security-or—the
7 earrying-of-tottery-tickets-cannot-reasonabiy-be

8 conducted-with-a-vehicite-disptaying-tofficrait

9 registration-ptates, and persons in the department of
10 economic development who are regularly assigned duties
11 relating to existing industry expansion or business
12 attraction. For purposes of sale of exempted

13 vehicles, the exempted governmental body, upon the

14 sale of the exempted vehicle, may issue for in-transit
15 purposes a pasteboard card bearing the words "Vehicle
16 in Transit", the name of the official body from which
17 the vehicle was purchased, together with the date of
18 the purchase plainly marked in at least one-inch

19 letters, and other information required by the

20 department. The in-transit card is valid for use only
21 within forty-eight hours after the purchase date as

22 indicated on the bill of sale which shall be carried
23 by the driver.

24 Sec. 115. Section 421.17, subsection 27, Code

25 1999, is amended by striking the subsection.

26 Sec. 116. Section 422.16, subsection 1, unnumbered
27 paragraph 4, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:
28 For the purposes of this subsection, state income
29 tax shall be withheld on winnings in excess of six

30 hundred dollars derived from gambling activities

31 authorized under chapter 99B or-99E. State income tax
32 shall be withheld on winnings in excess of one

33 thousand dollars from gambling activities authorized
34 under chapter 99D. State income tax shall be withheld
35 on winnings in excess of twelve hundred dollars

36 derived from slot machines authorized under chapter

37 99F.

38 Sec. 117. Section 422.43, subsection 2, Code 1999,
39 is amended to read as follows:
40 2. There is imposed a tax of five percent upon the

41 gross receipts derived from the operation of all forms
42 of amusement devices and games of skill, games of

43 chance, raffles, and bingo games as defined in chapter
44 99B, operated or conducted within the state, the tax
45 to be collected from the operator in the same manner
46 as for the collection of taxes upon the gross receipts
47 of tickets or admission as provided in this section.
48 Phe-tax-shati-atso-be-imposed-upon-the-gross-receipts
49 derived-from-the-sate-of-tottery-tickets-or-shares

50 pursuant-to-chapter-959E:--Fhe-tax-on-the-iottery
S-3363 -4-

Page 15




SENATE CLIP SHEET APRIL 15, 1999 Page 16

S-3363

age 5

1 titckets-or-shares-shati-be-incituded-in-the-sates-price
2 and-drstributed-to-the-generait-fund-as-provided-in

3 sectton-99E<-10+

4 Sec. 118. Section 422B.8, unnumbered paragraph 1,
5 Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

6 A local sales and services tax at the rate of not

7 more than one percent may be imposed by a county on

8 the gross receipts taxed by the state under chapter

9 422, division IV. A local sales and services tax
10 shall be imposed on the same basis as the state sales
11 and services tax and may not be imposed on the sale of
12 any property or on any service not taxed by the state,
13 except the tax shall not be imposed on the gross
14 receipts from the sale of motor fuel or special fuel
15 as defined in chapter 452A, on the gross receipts from
16 the rental of rooms, apartments, or sleeping quarters
17 which are taxed under chapter 422A during the period
18 the hotel and motel tax is imposed, on the gross
19 receipts from the sale of natural gas or electric

20 energy in a city or county where the gross receipts

21 are subject to a franchise fee or user fee during the
22 period the franchise or user fee is imposed, and on

23 the gross receipts from the sale of equipment by the
24 state department of transportationy-and-en-the-gross
25 receipts-from-the-sate-of-a-tottery-ticket-or-share-in

‘?6 a-lottery-game-conducted-pursuant-to-chapter-99E. A

27 local sales and services tax is applicable to

28 transactions within those incorporated and

29 unincorporated areas of the county where it is imposed
30 and shall be collected by all persons required to

31 collect state gross receipts taxes. All cities

32 contiguous to each other shall be treated as part of
33 one incorporated area and the tax would be imposed in
34 each of those contiguous cities only if the majority
35 of those voting in the total area covered by the

36 contiguous cities favor its imposition.

37 Sec. 119. Section 455A.18, subsection 3,

38 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1999, is amended to read
39 as follows:

40 For each fiscal year of the fiscal period beginning
41 July 1, 1997, and ending June 30, 2021, there is

42 appropriated from the general fund, to the Iowa

43 resources enhancement and protection fund, the amount
44 of twenty million dollars, to be used as provided in
45 this chapter. Hewever;-in-any—-fiscai-year-of-the

46 fiscai-pertod;-if-moneys-from-the-tottery-are

47 appropriated-by-the-state-to-the-fund;-the-amount
48 appropriated-under-this-subsection-shaii-be-reduced-by
49 the-amount-appropriated-from-the-itottery-
50 Sec. 120. Section 537A.4, unnumbered paragraph 2,

‘9—3363 -5~
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Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

This section does not apply to a contract for the
operation of or for the sale or rental of equipment
for games of skill or games of chance, if both the
contract and the games are in compliance with chapter
99B. This section does not apply to wagering under
the pari-mutuel method of wagering authorized by
chapter 99D. %Phis-section-does-not-appiy-to-the-sates
purchase-or-redemption-of-a-ticket-or-share-in-the
state-itottery-in-compitirance-with-chapter-95g<s This
section does not apply to wagering under the excursion
boat gambling method of wagering authorized by chapter
99F. This section does not apply to the sale,
purchase, or redemption of any ticket or similar
gambling device legally purchased in Indian lands
within this state.

Sec. 121. Section 714B.10, subsection 1, Code
1999, is amended to read as follows:

1. Advertising by sponsors registered pursuant to
chapter 557B, licensed pursuant to chapter 99B, or
regulated pursuant to chapter 99D7-99E7 or 99F.

Sec. 122. Section 725.9, subsection 5, Code 1999,
is amended to read as follows:

5. This chapter does not prohibit the possession
of gambling devices by a manufacturer or distributor
if the possession is solely for sale out of the state
in another jurisdiction where possession of the device
is legal or for sale in the state or use in the state
if the use is licensed pursuant to either chapter 99B
or-chapter-99E.

Sec. 123. Section 725.15, Code 1999, is amended to
read as follows:

725.15 EXCEPTIONS FOR LEGAL GAMBLING.

Sections 725.5 to 725.10 and 725.12 do not apply to
a game, activity, ticket, or device when lawfully
possessed, used, conducted, or participated in
pursuant to chapter 99B7-93%E; or 99F.

Sec. 124. Chapter 99E, Code 1999, is repealed."

___. Page 7, by striking line 13 and inserting
the following:

"l. Sections 1 through 16 of this Act take
effect".

____. Page 7, by inserting after line 14 the
following:

" ___. Sections 102 through 124 of this Act take
effect on July 1, 2000."

___. Page 7, by striking lines 15 and 16 and
inserting the following:

" . Sections 17 and 101 of this Act, being
deemed of immediate importance, take effect upon

S-3363 -6-
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1 enactment.™"
2 2. Page 2, line 9, by inserting after the word
3 "counties," the following: "eliminating the Iowa
4 lottery,".

By STEVEN D. HANSEN

S-3363 FILED APRIL 14, 1999
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A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to gambling, by imposing a moratorium on the

2 issuance or transfer of certain gambling licenses and on Q)
3 increasing the number of games and machines, authorizing the .
4 use of video slot machines, providing for the transfer of 31
5 collective bargaining agreements, limiting the location of al
6 excursion gambling boats and pari-mutuel racetracks, <
7 prohibiting the dispensing of cash or credit on certain V\
8 gambling premises, imposing a scheduled fine for gambling by
9 persons under twenty-one years of age, limiting civil

10 penalties related to violations of legal age for gambling,

11 providing for the disposition of charitable contributions,

12 nullifying certain administrative rules relating to gambling,

13 rescinding the nine-year period of operation for certain

14 licenses, providing a tax rate for gambling receipts at

15 racetrack enclosures, providing for properly related matters,

16 and providing effective dates.

17 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF JOWA: ,
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Section 1. Section 99D.9, subsection 1, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

1. If the commission is satisfied that its rules and
sections 99D.8 through 99D.25 applicable to licensees have
been or will be complied with, it may issue a license for a
period of not more than three years. The commission may
decide which types of racing it will permit. The commission
may permit dog racing, horse racing of various types, or both
dog and horse racing. The commission shall decide the number,
location, and type of all racetracks licensed under this
chapter. The commission shall not authorize a licensee to

conduct pari-mutuel wagering at a licensed premises in more

than one county. The license shall set forth the name of the

licensee, the type of license granted, the place where the
race meeting is to be held, and the time and number of days
during which racing may be conducted by the licensee. The

commission shall not approve the licenses for racetracks in
Dubuque county and Black Hawk county if the proposed racing
schedules of the two tracks conflict. The commission shall
not approve a license application if any part of the racetrack
is to be constructed on prime farmland outside the city limits
of an incorporated city. As used in this subsection, "prime
farmland" means as defined by the United States department of
agriculture in 7 C.F.R. sec. 657.5(a). A license is not
transferable or assignable. The commission may revoke any
license issued for good cause upon reasonable notice and
hearing. The commission shall conduct a neighborhood impact
study to determine the impact of granting a license on the
quality of life in neighborhoods adjacent to the proposed
racetrack facility. The applicant for the license shall
reimburse the commission for the costs incurred in making the
study. A copy of the study shall be retained on file with the
commission and shall be a public record. The study shall be
completed before the commission may issue a license for the

proposed facility.



O 00~ A bW N

1V

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

s.F. #¥$™ u.r.

Sec. 2. Section 99D.9, Code 1999, is amended by adding the
following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 8. A licensee shall not loan to any
person money or any other thing of value or permit a financial

institution, vendor, or other person to loan money on the

licensed premises on the basis of a credit card or similar

instrument in person or through an electronic or mechanical

device for the purpose of permitting that person to wager on

any race. The use of a check or debit card with overdraft

TRE prR eI AT T TR LTI oo

protection or a credit card cash advance through a satellite

terminal as defined in sect19n 527.2 or a withdrawal from an

account through a satellite terminal as defined in section

527.2 is not prohibited by this subsection.

Sec. 3. Section 99D.11, subsection 7, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

7. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not
make or attempt to make a pari-mutuel wager. A person who

violates this subsection commits a scheduled violation under

section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 4. Section 99E.18, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A person under the age of twenty-one
years shall not purchase or attempt to purchase a ticket or

share. A person who violates this subsection commits a
scheduled violation under section 805.8, subsection 13.

Sec. 5. Section 99F.1, subsection 9, Code 1999, is amended
to read as follows:

9. "Gambling game" means any game of chance authorized by
the commission. If slot machines are authorized, video slot

machines are included as gambling games. However, for

racetrack enclosures, '"gambling game" does not include table

games of chance or video machines except video slot machines.

"Gambling game" does not include sports betting.
Sec. 6. Section 99F.4A, subsection 2, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:
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2. A license to operate gambling games shall be issued
only to a licensee holding a valid license to conduct pari-
mutuel dog or horse racing pursuant to chapter 99D on January
1, 1994. However, a license to operate gambling games issued

pursuant to this subsection may be transferred to another

person after a majority of the voters voting on the transfer

proposal approves it. Only the registered voters of the

county in which the racetrack enclosure is located are

eligible to vote on the proposal. The transfer proposal shall

be submitted by the board of supervisors at a general election

or at a special election called for that purpose. If the

proposal is approved, the transfer of a license 1s subject to

application to, and approval by, the commission. However, the

commission shall not give its approval unless the new licensee

meets the requirements of sections 99D.8 through 99D.10, and

has a license to conduct pari-mutuel wagering in this state.

In addition, if there is in existence at the time of license

transfer a contract for purses and supplements for horse

racing, the contract shall remain in effect until its

termination, and thereafter, purses and supplements shall be

no lower than fifteen percent of the annual adjusted gross

receipts. A transferee shall not be required to honor any

material changes made to such a contract within one year

before the transfer.

Sec. 7. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 8. The total number of licenses issued to
conduct gambling games at pari-mutuel racetracks pursuant to
subsection 2 shall not exceed three until July 1, 2004.

Sec. 8. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 9. A civil penalty imposed by the
commission on a licensee relating to a violation of legal age

for gambling at an excursion gambling boat or a pari-mutuel
racetrack shall not exceed one thousand dollars per incident

-3~
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if the violator is removed from the excursion gambling boat or
racetrack enclosure by the licensee.

Sec. 9. Section 99F.4A, Code 1999, is amended by adding
the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 10. If a license issued pursuant to this
chapter or chapter 99D is transferred, an existing collective

bargaining agreement or the impact of an employee
representation election shall transfer to the new licensee.
Sec. 10. NEW SECTION. 99F.5A MORATORIUM FOR ISSUANCE OF
LICENSES FOR EXCURSION GAMBLING BOATS AND ON THE NUMBER OF
GAMBLING GAMES OR SLOT MACHINES.
1. The total number of licenses issued to conduct gambling

games on excursion gambling boats pursuant to this chapter
shall not exceed ten until July 1, 2004.

2. The following actions may be taken until July 1, 2004,
with the approval of the commission:

a. A licensed excursion gambling boat may move to a new
location within the same county.

b. A licensed excursion gambling boat and its facilities
may be sold and a new license may be issued for operation in
the same county.

c. If a license to conduct gambling games on an excursion
gambling boat is surrendered, not renewed, or revoked, a new
license may be issued for operation in the same county.

3. Until January 1, 2002, the commission shall not
authorize any of the following:

a. An increase in the number of gambling games or the
number of slot machines on an excursion gambling boat.

b. An increase in the number of slot machines at a pari-
mutuel racetrack.

Sec. 11. NEW SECTION. 99F.5B CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS.

A gambling game license holder may distribute profits to a
governmental body and the distribution shall be considered a
charitable contribution. The duty to make charitable

contributions may be the subject of a contract between a

-4-
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governmental body and a gambling game license holder. The .
moneys received by a county as charitable contributions shall
be distributed only after receiving advice from citizens of
the county obtained at a public hearing held in the county.

Sec. 12. Section 99F.7, subsection 1, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

1. If the commission is satisfied that this chapter and
its rules adopted under this chapter applicable to licensees
have been or will be complied with, the commission shall issue
a license for a period of not more than three years to an
applicant to own a gambling game operation and to an applicant
to operate an excursion gambling boat. The commission shall
decide which of the gambling games authorized under this
chapter it will permit. The commission shall decide the
number, location, and type of excursion gambling boats
licensed under this chapter for operation on the rivers,
lakes, and reservoirs of this state. However, after the

effective date of this Act, the commission shall issue or

renew a license for an excursion gambling boat operation only

if the excursion gambling boat operates on the Mississippi or

Missouri river or in Clarke county. The license shall set

forth the name of the licensee, the type of license granted,
the place where the excursion gambling boats will operate and
dock, and the time and number of days during the excursion
season and the off season when gambling may be conducted by
the licensee. The commission shall not allow a licensee to
conduct gambling games on an excursion gambling boat while
docked during the off season if the licensee does not operate
gambling excursions for a minimum number of days during the
excursion season. The commission may delay the commencement
of the excursion season at the request of a licensee.

Sec. 13. Section 99F.7, subsection 10, paragraph b, Code
1999, is amended to read as follows:

b. If licenses to conduct gambling games and to operate an '
excursion gambling boat are in effect pursuant to a referendum

-5-
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as set forth in this section and are subsequently disapproved
by a referendum of the county electorate, the licenses issued
by the commission after a referendum approving gambling games
on excursion gambling boats shall remain valid and are subject
to renewal for a total of nine years from the date of original
issue unless the commission revokes a license at an earlier

date as provided in this chapter. For the purpose of this

paragraph, the nine-year period of operation shall only apply

to licensees whose original application was filed on or before
January 1, 2000.

Sec. 14. Section 99F.9, subsection 5, Code 1999, is
amended to read as follows:

5. A person under the age of twenty-one years shall not
make or attempt to make a wager on an excursion gambling boat

or in a racetrack enclosure and shall not be-atlewed-in enter

the area of the excursion gambling boat or racetrack enclosure

where gambling is being conducted except for employment

purposes. However, a person under eighteen years of age or

otder may be employed to work in a-gambiing nongambling areas

only earea on _an excursion gambling boat or in a racetrack
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enclosure. A person who violates thi